### UIdaho Law Digital Commons @ UIdaho Law

Not Reported

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

5-23-2014

## Coleman v. State Appellant's Brief Dckt. 41080

### Statement of The Case

## Nature of The Case

ON February 22,2013 an Application for Post-Conviction relief was Filed in the Ada County division of the Fourth Judicial District. This is an appeal from the Honorable Melissa Moody's June 6th 2013 decision dismissing that same petition.

# Relevant and Undisputed Material Facts:

ON December 10,2010 Charles Sheldton Coleman was sentenced on three (3) accounts of criminal Charges, CR-FE-2009-0023454 UN IAW Ful Exercise of Police Officer to an Aggregated term of Five (5) years in the Custody of The State Board of Corrections, with a minimum period of Confinement of two(2) years, followed by a Subsequent indeterminate period of custody not to exceed three (3) years, with Said term to run concurrently with case NO. CR-FE 2010-000305 (Note Robbery).

Second Account CR-FE-2010-0000305 Robbery to an aggregated term of thirty one (31) years in the Custody of The State Board of Corrections, with a minimum period of confinement of six and onehalf (6.5) years followed by an indeterminate period not to exceed then ty-four and one-half (24.5) years with said term to run concurrently with case No. CR-FE-2009 00230150 1 minist 8 Police Officer.

Third Account CR-FE-2010-CCO 9317 Battery on AN Officer to an aggregated term of Five(5) years in the Custody of The State Board of Corrections, with a minimum period of confinement of six(6) months, followed by a Subsequent indeterminate period of custody not to exceed four and one-half (4.5) years, with Said term to rin consecutive to case Nois. CR-FE-2009-0023454 UNIAWFUL Excersise of a Police Officer and CR-FE-2010-0000.305 Robbery.

In Which Coleman Pled guilty to all three accounts under the supervision of John Sutton at Sentencing Thereafter Coleman pursued Post-Conniction appeal were counsel was appointed, limited discovery conducted and an Amended petition filed, answered, and a request for Sommary judgement by the State placed before the Court.

On MAY 28th 2013 the District Court issued an Order conditionally dismussing the February 22, 2013 application for Post-Conviction relief and the April 10, 2013 Amended application for Post-Conviction relief. (2)

Now, in the Idaho Supreme Court of Appeals -1the Relevant facts are presented as follows:

# Course of Relevant Prior proceedings:

Although originally pleasing guilty to the three Criminal accounts of Robberg, Battery and Unlawful Excersise of a Police Officer under the supervision of John Sutton at the time of Sentencing on December 10,2010. During Coleman's pre-sentencing proceedings he was recommended by the Courts to take a psychological evaluation pursuant to Idaho Code \$ 19-2522 for sentencing. Which the Mental Health assessment and GAIN I evaluation resulted in an inconsistency. Result to Idaho Roles of Evidence 201, the petitioner requests this court take judicial notice of the GAIN-I evaluation and Mental Health assessment included in the pre-sentence investigation report. (4)

Upon Sentencing Schedule I was asked a series of questions pertaining to understanding the Court rules in which my attorney at the time indicated to me with a whisper in ear that "I do" and to state verbatum? Say Yes? Cooperating with instructions from my attorney I said "Yes?" to understanding all his questions about rules pertaining to pronouncing sentence.

In that same sentencing schedule I was unawhere and was never made aware that my Federal,

-2-

State, and Constitutional rights were then Violated of a Die Process along with the prejudicial Nature of proceedings.

Here, this abbreviated rendition of the course of the relevant price proceedings ends;

-2-

D.R.VOLI pg. CC0035
R.VOLI pg 000049
R.VOLI pg 000046
R.VOLI pg 000047

ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL

I DID THE DISTRICT COURT ABUSE IT'S DISCRECTION WHEN IT DENIED THE PETITIONER'S RIGHT TO A DUE PROCESS, THUS ABBROGATING THE STATE AND FEDERAL DUE PROCESS RIGHT'S OF THE APPELLANT UNDER ARTICLE 1, SECTION 13 AND THE 14th AMENDMENT OF THE U.S. CONSTITUTION?

II. HAS THE DISTRICT COURT ERRED IN IT'S CONCLUSION THAT THE PETITIONER DID NOT SUFFER A LEVEL OF INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL WHICH VIOLATES THE APPELLANTS RIGHTS UNDER THE DUE PROCESS PORTIONS OF BOTH THE IDAHO AND US. CONSTITUTIONS???

## General Standards of Review

A. Applicable Standards for Post-Conviction Petitions

A petition for post-Conviction relief proceeding is civil in NATURE, and accordingly requires proof by the preponderance of the evidence to prevail. See. I.C. 91 19-4907; Sivak v. State of Idaho, 134, Idaho 641, 8 P. 3d 636 (2000). Moreover with but few exceptions, it is the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure which governs these types of matters. I.C. R. 57(b) Ferrier v. State of Idaho 135 Idaho 797, 25 P.3d 110 (2001)

An Application for post-Conviction differs; however from an ordinary civil complaint in that the petition must contain: (a) much more than "a short and plain statement of the claim as required under I.R.C.P. 8(a)(1); and (b) it must be verified with respect to those facts within the personal Knowledge of the applicant, and those Affidavits records, or other evidence supporting its allegations are to be attached, or their absence explained." See: Martinez v. State of Idaho, 126 Idaho 813, 816, 892 P.2d 488, 491 (COA 1995), and I.C. 91 19-4903, respectively.

Said otherwise, the post-Conviction petitioner Must make factual allegations showing each essential element of the claim, and a showing of admissible evidence must support those factual allegations. Roman v. State of Idaho 125 Idaho 644, 647, 873 P.Zd 898, 901 (COA 1994) -4· Stone v State of Idaho, 108 Idaho 822,824 702 P.2d 860,862 (COH 1985); and Drapeau v State of Idaho, 103 Idaho, 612, 617, 651 P.2d 546,551, (COA 1982). Still those factual allegations contained within the petition or its verified attachments are deemed to be true until Controverted. Cooper v. State of Idaho, 96 Idaho 542,531 P.2d 1187 (1975); Roman, at 647

# Legal and Factual Arguments

I. The District Court abused it's discretion when it denied the Petitioner's Right to Allocution, Thus albrogating the State and Federal Due Process Right's of the Appellant.

Standard of Review For A Due Process:

14th Amendment of the United States Constitution and Article I, 3 13 of the Idaho Constitution Mandates the violation of A Due Process.

## Undisputable Material Facts

That portion of the prison File consisting of a Copy of the 12-10-2010 Judgement of Conviction in each of the three (3) Ada County Court Cases was not readily available to me as contested in grievance proceedings. E See. Exhibit A Attriched to Appellants index of Exhibits on Reply Brief.

-5-

IF I had gotten the judgements sconer, I wouldn't have noticed the information in it, because I had counsel at sentencing, Direct Appeal Rule 35 and I was unaware, that any false, or misleading information which is prejudicial in nature, existed just outside my reach.

## Argument

Counsel during § 19-2510 proceedings during every Stage, failed to notice the error (False, or nuskading information in the Judgement of Conviction and The Notice of Transcript as Idaho Code § 19-2510 States that "When a defendant appears for judgement he must be informed by the court, or by the Clerk, under its direction, of the nature of the indictment and of his plea, and the verdict if any thereon, and must be asked whether he has any legal cause to show, why judgement should not be pronounced against him?

In which I, the defendant was not given the opportunity to address the Court, with respect to the Honorable Judge Michael Mclaughlin, only addressed my counsel, but failed to address me personally in transcript of Exhibit (C) page (6) Section 22, lines 3-12, but my Judgement of (6) Conviction page (2) sections 23-25 continued on page (2) section I-4 states Verbatum <sup>cc</sup> The "defendant" and his counsel were then asked if they had any legal cause or reason to offer why judgement and sentence should not be pronounced against the defendant and if the defendant or his counsel wished to make a statement on behalf of the defendant, or to present any information to the court in Miligation of punishment and the Court having accepted such statement and having found no legal cause or reason why judgement and Sentence should not be pronounced against the defendant at this time; does render it's judgement of Condiction as follows? Verbatum in the transcript of Exhibit (C) page (6) section 22, lines 3-12 "IF your going to appeal this court's sentence, you have to file a written notice of appeal 42 days from the date that the clerk's Office. So do you understand that with the Clerk's Office. So do you understand that aspect or that part of your appeal Rights? "The Defendant" Yes sir, "The Court" MR. Sutton, do you know of any reason legal or otherwise, why the Court shouldn't pronounce sentence?"

(7)

This in itself has in Violation of my Due Process Rights because had I'd been given the opportunity to give my reason legal or otherwise why the Court Shouldn't pronounce sentence, I the Defendant could have said to the Honorable Judge Michnel Mclaughlin that "I wasn't competent enough to Understand what he was doing or what was going on around me at the time of sentencing, because I'm mentally impaired" as reported in My GAIN-I evaluation and Mental Health assessment during pre-sentence.

The Mental Health assessment diagnosed the petitioner with Polysubstance Dependence, Posttraumatic Stress Disorder and Personality Disorder NOS. The GAIN-I evaluation diagnosed the petitioner with Amphetamine Dependence, Major Depressive Disorder,

# and Ruled out Posttrauminitic Stress Disorder.

Based upon the inconsistent diagnosis between the evaluations in A case were Mental Health is a Mitigating Factor, the petitioner's trial counsel should have requested a third and more thorough evaluation pursuant to Idaho Code § 19-2522 Failure to do so was deficient and prejudice to the petitioner since no accurate account of his Mental Health issues were presented to the Caurt.

As an Inmitte were not allowed copies of those evaluations or the Pre-Sentence Reports and would like to ask the Court to see Exhibit E. 9

Since then I've been diagnosed due to history of Mental instability and Frimily's history of Mental instability with Mood Disorder. Anxiety, (GAD/ Panic/PTSD/OCD/ADHD) which presents that the defendant does have serious Mental Health issues by the prison MD. K. Khatain which I have a record directly from Khatain dated 5/22/12 see Exhibit D which I ask if credible enough the Courts take judicial Notice of this record since this seens to be the only format the physician can release to inmates for their personal records. (8) Cited in: See Starkey v. State, 91 Idaho 74, 415 P.2d 717 (1966); Edel Blute v. State, 91 Idaho 469, 424 p.2d 739 (1967)

Non-Compliance with provisions of this section after plea of guilty, which is claimed to be involuntary and open advice of inexperienced counsel, is erroneous; especially when arraignment, plea, and -8Judgement were all had on the same day. See State V. Poglianich, 43 Idaho 409, 252 P. 177 (1927)

Which is a few of the (false, or misteading) issues in my case that my counsel at every stage never advised me about and never raised issue during Sentencing, direct appellant process, NOR collateral proceedings and appeals there after.

That's why my argument surrounds the fact that the court's were in violation of Idaho Code \$ 19-2510 which results in my claims of Denied Due Process Right's and Ineffective Assistance of counsel for Not representing my best interest rather allowing prejudicial proceedings without objection.

Counsel failed to notice, Object, Confer, NOR Otherwise advise me of my rights given the inadequate Rule 33 query presented by the Court out of time, I.C. § 19-2510 is explicit in legislative intent requiring the Court to address me personally inquiring whether I have any legal cause to show.

tor these reasons, I believe I am entitled to a remand from the Idaho Court of Appeals to remand permitting re-sentencing after I am granted the right to speak.

Lin asking the Covet to take judicial Notice of the 12-10-2010 sentencing hearing See Exhibit(C) The Notice of Transoript page (6) section 22, lines 3-12 in correlation with Exhibit (B) Judgement of (6) Conviction page (1), section 23-25 which is continued on Page (2) section 1-4 and Exhibit (A) which is Inadequate (5) Access to Courts documents and Determine, hold, or Otherwise find that the language complained of in the Judgement correlated with the Transcripts do in · fact have false, or musleading information in it.

(5) Exhibit A- Grievance Proceedings
(6) Exhibit B- Judgement of Conviction page(1)
Section 23-25 continued on page(2) section 1-4
(7) Exhibit C- The Notice of Transcript page(6)
Section 22, lines 3-12
(8) Mental Health Diagnosis record per Mental Health Physician K. Khatain MD
Exhibit D
(9) Exhibit E In adequate Access to PSI report

(5) Once I recently obtained a copy of the Judgement in the prison file, I began a series of timely concern forms that ended in A Return without Action, because the Hocess to Courts I require " is beyond the Idaho Department of Corrections Control. See Exhibit A in this Brief.

For these reasons the newly derived fact predicate raises a substantial doubt about the reliability of the entry of the plea of guilt may be withdrawn in cases where more severe information comes to light in documents once reviewed, that are not yet in my possession, and could not in the excercise of due dilligence, have been presented earlier.

L'm asking the Court's to Determine, Hold, or Otherwise Find that the language in the Judgement resulted in prejudice during Direct Appeals were the Idaho Court of Appeals was mislead into an impermissible presumption of corrections was more a fact the solution of presumption Los UNIAN ful and entitled me to re-sentencing. Determine, hold, or otherwise find, that the sentencing court did in FAct address Counsel by NAME and not the defendant to ask \$ 19-2510 inquiry.

Order the defendant be brought back before the Court to present his legal cause and grant that I be produced for a hearing to allow me my Die Process right to explain the extent of my Mental incapacity Suffered, and prejudice endured.

IF. The District Court erred in it's Conclusion that the Petitioner Did Not Suffer a Level of Ineffective of Assistance of Counsel which violates the Appellants Rights Under the Due Process portions of both the Idaho and United States Constitution.

### Standard of Review For Ineffective Assistance of Coursel:

The right to assistance of Counsel for the criminal is inviolate and extends to the right to effective assistance of counsel. Stricklandv. Washington, 466 U.S. 668,687(1984) To evaluate claims of ineffective assistance of Counsel, the Supreme Court has established a two prong test: To prevail, the defendant must demonstrate that counsels performance fell below the objective standard of reasonableness and that this deficient performance has prejudiced the defendant. Id. at 687-88.

In Considering whether counsel's performance was ineffective the Court must consider the totality of the Circumstances and the collective impact of the acts or omissions. I.d. at 689-690; The burden of proving these claims is normally met by showing that the "Outcome would have been different but for Counsel's errors. See Williams V. Taylor, 529 U.S. 362, 391-93(2000) in this respect

### UNDISPUTED MATERIAL FACTS

- 1 Cansel Failed to respectfully correct the Honorable Judge Michael Mclaughlin at the time of sentencing to remind him that his client wasn't asked if he personally had any reason why sentencing shouldn't be pronocinced against him, then I Chakles Sheld ton Coleman the defendant would have been made aware that, that was an option and an opportunity I might have otherwise had a chance to introduce the extent of mitigating factors I suffer from that affect me mentally resulting in the lesser of a Sentence. See Exhibit (C) page (6) Sec. 22, lines 3-12.
  - 2. Counsel failed to object or raise issue of inconsistent Mental Health and GAIN-I evaluations and never recommended a third and more thorough evaluation which is personally prejudice to the defendant / petitioner which would have shed light on the complications of determining whether Accurate accounts of Coleman's in competence was considered for sentencing pursuant Idaho Code § 19-2522 Failure to do so was deficient and prejudiced the petitioner since no accurate account of his Mental Health issues were presented to the Court.

Conclusion

The foregoing is reason enough to either reverse this case or remained the matter back to the District Court to withdraw Guilty Plea and allow for a re-sentencing for a more proper review of the issues, and a full-and fair Right to a Due Process.