UIdaho Law Digital Commons @ UIdaho Law

Not Reported

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

6-17-2014

Coleman v. State Respondent's Brief Dckt. 41080

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Nature Of The Case

Charles S. Coleman appeals from the summary dismissal of his petition for post-conviction relief.

Statement Of The Facts And Course Of The Proceedings

Coleman pled guilty to and was convicted of robbery, unlawful exercise of the functions of a police officer, and battery on a sheriff, and the district court imposed sentences totaling 36 years with seven years determinate. (R., pp. 3, 35, 38.) He filed motions to reduce his sentences, which were denied, and the denial of his post-judgment motions was affirmed on appeal. (R., p. 38.) He initiated the instant case by filing a post-conviction petition¹ and later, through counsel, an amended petition. (R., pp. 3-9, 34-36.)

Coleman asserted claims of ineffective assistance of counsel for not "address[ing] mitigating factors at sentencing," failing to address "mental health issues," failing to request a mental health evaluation, and a claim that the court had failed to address his request for counsel to pursue his Rule 35 motions. (R., pp. 4-5, 8, 36 (capitalization altered).) The district court provided notice of intent to dismiss these claims for failure to plead both elements of ineffective assistance of counsel and because the claims were disproved by the record or legally invalid. (R., pp. 38-44.)

¹ Because the appeals in the criminal cases were only from the denial of postjudgment motions, it is likely that the petition was not timely from the entry of the judgments. This issue was not raised to the district court, however.

Responding to the notice of intent to dismiss, Coleman's counsel abandoned the claims asserted in the original petition (stating they had been "inadvertently incorporated") and elected to pursue only the claim that counsel had been ineffective for failing to request a mental health evaluation for sentencing pursuant to I.C. § 19-2522. (R., pp. 46-47.) Specifically, Coleman asserted counsel was ineffective for failing to request a third evaluation where the two evaluations prepared for sentencing presented "inconsistent diagnoses." (Id.) The court dismissed the petitions for the reasons set forth in the notice of intent to dismiss. (R., p. 49.) Coleman filed a timely notice of appeal. (R., pp. 51-53.)

ISSUES

Coleman states the issues on appeal as:

- I. Did the district court abuse its discretion when it denied the petitioner's right to a [sic] due process, thus abbrogating [sic] the state and federal due process rights of the Appellant under Article 1, Section 13 and the 14th amendment of the U.S. Constitution?
- II. Has the district court erred in its conclusion that the Petitioner did not suffer a level of ineffective assistance of counsel which violates the Appellant's rights under the due process portions of both the Idaho and U.S. constitutions?

(Appellant's brief, p. 3 (capitalization altered).)

The state rephrases the issues as:

- 1. Must this Court refuse to consider Coleman's due process argument because he pled no such claim in his petition or amended petition?
- 2. Has Coleman failed to show he presented a *prima facie* claim of ineffective assistance of counsel?

ARGUMENT

I. <u>Coleman's Claim Of A Due Process Violation In The Criminal Case Is Not Before</u> <u>This Court</u>

On appeal Coleman claims that the district court *in the criminal case* denied him due process by failing to afford him the right of allocution at sentencing. (Appellant's brief, pp. 5-11.²) Coleman's attempt to assert a cause of action never included in his petition or amended petition is meritless. <u>Schultz</u> <u>v. State</u>, 151 Idaho 383, 387, 256 P.3d 791, 795 (Ct. App. 2011) (appellate court "will not address" claims not properly pled below).

11.

Coleman Has Failed To Show He Presented A Prima Facie Claim Of Ineffective Assistance Of Counsel

A. <u>Introduction</u>

Coleman claims it is an "undisputed" fact that "counsel failed to object or raise issue of inconsistent mental health and GAIN-I evaluations and never recommended a third and more thorough evaluation" and that this failure prejudiced him. (Appellant's brief, p. 12 (capitalization altered).) Even conceding, for purposes of summary disposition, that the two evaluations were in "conflict," such does not present even a *prima facie* claim of ineffective assistance of counsel.

² The state notes that this claim is false. Coleman's allocution starts on page 20 of the partial transcript he attached to his brief. (Appellant's brief, "Exhibit C.")

B. Standard Of Review

On appeal from summary dismissal of a post-conviction petition, the appellate court reviews the record to determine if a genuine issue of material fact exists, which, if resolved in the applicant's favor, would entitle the applicant to the requested relief. <u>Matthews v. State</u>, 122 Idaho 801, 807, 839 P.2d 1215, 1221 (1992); <u>Aeschliman v. State</u>, 132 Idaho 397, 403, 973 P.2d 749, 755 (Ct. App. 1999). Appellate courts freely review whether a genuine issue of material fact exists. <u>Edwards v. Conchemco, Inc.</u>, 111 Idaho 851, 852, 727 P.2d 1279, 1280 (Ct. App. 1986).

C. <u>The Existence Of Conflicting Evidence Does Not Show Deficient</u> <u>Performance By Trial Counsel Or Prejudice</u>

Idaho Code § 19-4906 authorizes summary dismissal of an application for post-conviction relief in response to a party's motion or on the court's own initiative. "To withstand summary dismissal, a post-conviction applicant must present evidence establishing a prima facie case as to each element of the claims upon which the applicant bears the burden of proof." <u>State v. Lovelace</u>, 140 Idaho 53, 72, 90 P.3d 278, 297 (2003) (citing <u>Pratt v. State</u>, 134 Idaho 581, 583, 6 P.3d 831, 833 (2000)). Thus, a claim for post-conviction relief is subject to summary dismissal pursuant to I.C. § 19-4906 "if the applicant's evidence raises no genuine issue of material fact" as to each element of petitioner's claims. <u>Workman v. State</u>, 144 Idaho 518, 522, 164 P.3d 798, 802 (2007) (citing I.C. § 19-4906(b), (c)); <u>Lovelace</u>, 140 Idaho at 72, 90 P.3d at 297.

5

In order to survive summary dismissal of an ineffective assistance of counsel claim, a post-conviction petitioner must specifically demonstrate that "(1) a material issue of fact exists as to whether counsel's performance was deficient, and (2) a material issue of fact exists as to whether the deficiency prejudiced the applicant's case." Baldwin v. State, 145 Idaho 148, 153-54, 177 P.3d 362, 367-68 (2008) (internal citations omitted). "To establish deficient assistance, the burden is on the petitioner to show that his attorney's conduct fell below an objective standard of reasonableness. This objective standard embraces a strong presumption that trial counsel was competent and diligent." ld. "[S]trategic or tactical decisions will not be second-guessed on appeal unless those decisions are based on inadequate preparation, ignorance of relevant law, or other shortcomings capable of objective evaluation." ld. "To establish prejudice, the claimant must show a reasonable probability that but for his attorney's deficient performance the outcome of the proceeding would have been different." Id.

Coleman's argument is, in its entirety, a claim that because there is conflicting evidence in the record regarding his mental health arising from two evaluations, counsel was ineffective for failing to get a third evaluation. (R., pp. 46-47; Appellant's brief, p. 12.) Conflicting evidence is the norm in both trials and sentencing. The existence of conflicting evidence alone does not suggest, much less demonstrate, deficient performance or prejudice.

6

CONCLUSION

The state respectfully requests this Court to affirm the district court's summary dismissal of the petitions for post-conviction relief.